
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
September 9, 2013 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Ron Higey, Birmingham International Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports  
8. Presentation – Parks and Recreation Foundation 
9. Approval Of Minutes –August 26, 2013 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 4491 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Renewal Of The Contract For Collection Of 
Garage And Trash For The City Of Vestavia Hills   (public hearing)  

11. Resolution Number 4492 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Technology Equipment For The Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest With A Portion Of 
A $300,000 Grant From The Public School And College Authority (PSCA)   (public 
hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 4493 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Janitorial Services For 
The Civic Center And Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver A 3-Year Agreement For Said Services    (public hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 4494 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-15-4-
016-009.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
The City Of Vestavia Hills To Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing 
The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be 
Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal 



Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 4495 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-30-2-
014-001.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-
53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance 
With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For 
The City Of Vestavia Hills To Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing 
The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be 
Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal 
Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

15. Resolution Number 4496 – A Resolution Approving And Adopting The General Fund 
Budget, A Special Revenue Fund Budget And A Capital Project Fund Budget For The 
City Of Vestavia Hills For The Period Beginning October 1, 2013 Until September 30, 
2014   (public hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 4497 – A Resolution Approving A Two-Percent (2%) COLA For 
Employees Effective October 1, 2013   

17. Resolution Number 4498 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Remit 
Payment Of The Balance For The Republication Of The City’s Municipal Code From 
The Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General Fund   (public hearing) 

New Business 

18. Resolution Number 4500 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Sonu 
Enterprises, Inc., D/B/A Cahaba Heights Texaco; Farida Ali, Executive 

19. Resolution Number 4501 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid for Computer Equipment 
Storage Area Network (SAN) 

20. Resolution Number 4502 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With ESO Solutions LLC For Purchase Of Patient 
Care Reporting Software 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

21. Resolution Number 4503 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Repair A 
Damaged Vehicle For The Vestavia Hills Police Department   (public hearing) 

 



22. Resolution Number 4504 – A Resolution Authorizing The Application For A Flood 
Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grant From The Acquisition Of At Risk Flood Plain 
Properties Within The Meadowlawn Estates Subdivision  (public hearing) 

23. Resolution Number 4506 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 
And Deliver An Agreement With LEHE Planning, LLC For Professional Services And 
To Provide Additional Funding For Needed Surveys In Order To Make Application For 
A Flood Mitigation Grant    (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

24. Resolution Number 4505 – A Resolution Accepting Bids For Non-Athletic Grounds 
Maintenance For Parks And Recreation And Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest  

25. Resolution Number 4507 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Remit 
Payment On An Invoice For Additional Sewer Capacity Adjustments To Enviro Services 
LLC For Sewer Services To The Liberty Park Sports Complex   (public hearing) 

26. Ordinance Number 2464 – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2427 Regarding 
Traffic Education  (public hearing) 

27. Ordinance Number 2465 – An Ordinance Establishing And Creating The Collision 
Avoidance Training Program For The City Of Vestavia Hills  (public hearing) 

28. Citizens Comments  
29. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 26, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
Mr. Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem, called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the 
roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Dep. Finance Director 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Greg Gilchrist, Fire Marshal 
 
 Invocation was given by Ron Higey, Birmingham International Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• Mr. Pierce announced that the final I Love America Day festivity was a complete 
success.  He thanked all the committee members, volunteers and the Chamber for 
making the event so great. 

• Mr. Henley announced that Rachel’s Challenge will be held on September 16 and 
17 with proceeds going to help challenged students.  He invited everyone to 
attend and participate in the event. 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 2 
 

• Mr. Ammons announced that the Mayor had a death in the family and asked 
everyone to pray for the family. 

• Mr. Ammons welcomed Mr. Andrew Edwards to the meeting.  Mr. Edwards 
serves as the Vestavia Hills representative on the MAX Board. 

• Davis Edwards, Boy Scout from Troop 4, was also welcomed to the meeting. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes announced that City offices would be closed on September 2, 2013 
for the Labor Day holiday. 

• Paving has been delayed because of larger project demands of the contractor in 
other areas of the state.  However, it should begin soon. 

• The City has been notified of two funding sources to allow for purchasing 
portions of the Meadowlawn Community. 

o Mr. Brady gave an update regarding newer funding sources for the 
proposed buyout of properties in Meadowlawn and indicated they are 
close to filing applications. 

• Mr. Downes updated the Council on ideas for development opportunities in the 
Cahaba Heights area which has met with some interests from developers.  He 
indicated that he is beginning discussions with select property owners in an area 
in order to obtain the prospects of some public/private projects to stimulate some 
changes and development in the Cahaba Heights area.  He indicated that the City 
should start with a good plan and build on it, promoting concepts such as shared 
parking and the City taking an active interest in proceeding with the development.  
Discussion ensued as to whether or not the Council should take a short day trip to 
see Mr. Downes’ past accomplishments in Montgomery. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• None. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending July 2013.  He read 
and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the August 12, 2013 (Regular Meeting), August 15, 2013 
(Meeting With the Mayor) and August 20, 2013 (Work Session) were presented for 
approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the August 12, 2013 
(Regular Meeting), August 15, 2013 (Meeting With Mr. Ammons) and 
August 20, 2013 (Work Session) and approve them as presented was by 
Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4485 

Resolution Number 4485 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4425 To 
Allow Validation Of Additional Incentives For The City Of Vestavia 
Hills, Alabama   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4485 was by Mr. Henley and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution would give global approval to an 
incentive program with a ceiling of $15,000 which would be validated as one project and 
would keep the City from having to validate each request.  This has been discussed 
previously at various work sessions and meetings. 
 
 Heyward Hosch was present in regard to this request and gave the Council a 
history on the request as well as what the approval would entail. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
speak to this request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4486 

Resolution Number 4486 – A Resolution Directing The City Manager And Mayor 
To Take All Actions Necessary To Deliver And Request Validation Of An 
Incentive Package Submitted By Hollywood Imports    (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4486 was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution approves a request made by 
Hollywood Imports to make selected improvements to the business in return for a rebate 
of some of the sales taxes. 
 
 Mr. Baughman explained the improvements planned by the owner of the property 
and the estimated rebate of a certain amount of sales taxes in excess of what’s currently 
being submitted to the City. 
 
 Heyward Hosch was present in regard to this request and gave the Council a 
history of the request as well as what the approval would entail. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
speak to this request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2462 

Ordinance Number 2462 – An Ordinance Rescinding Ordinance Number 1687 – 
Establishing The Speed Limit For Liberty Parkway, Vestlake Communities 
And All Areas Of Liberty Parkway   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2462 was by Mr. Henley and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Ordinance repeals the speed limit in Liberty Park 
which is unenforceable because the roads are private in the area.  He stated that this old 
ordinance was discovered to still be on the books during the City’s republication of the 
Code and this Ordinance simply cleans that up. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to speak 
to this request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 5 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2463 

Ordinance Number 2463 – An Ordinance To Repeal Ordinance Number 2099 And 
Ordinance Number 2411, To Reaffirm Ordinance Number 2209 And Adopt 
In Full Ordinance Number 2463 Titled The “City Of Vestavia Hills Smoke-
Free Ordinance Of 2012”   (public hearing) 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2463 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that a non-smoking ordinance was enacted about a year 
ago and during the republication of the Code, it was discovered that a typographical error 
repealed an ordinance different than what should have been repealed.  This Ordinance 
repeals the correct Ordinance and reaffirms the Ordinance actually repealed.  This request 
is again, a clean-up of the Code as it is being republished. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to speak 
to this request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4487 

Resolution Number 4487 – A Resolution Declaring Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Surplus Item 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4487 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this declares a Jeep Cherokee with more than 200,000 
miles as surplus and allows the sale of said item.  He stated that the vehicle was acquired 
through a property drug seizure and the moneys will be returned to the special funds 
account to be utilized for law enforcement purposes. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 6 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4488 

Resolution Number 4488 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept 
A Proposal From SunTrust Bank Regarding Leasing Of Certain Vehicles 
And/Or Heavy Equipment 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4488 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution locks in an interest rate on certain vehicles 
and equipment that the City wants to lease. 
 
 Mr. Sharp commended Mr. Turner and indicated that more than 16 banks had the 
option to quote on this. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the City has financed several times through SunTrust and 
he recommends approval of this and the next Resolution.  He offered an amendment to 
the next Resolution to amend all areas that say “Section 05” to say “Section 05 and 06.” 
 
 Discussion ensued concerning the vehicles to be leased and the terms of both 
Resolution Numbers 4488 and 4499. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to speak 
to this request, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4499 
 
Resolution Number 4499 – A Resolution Authorizing The Leasing And Subsequent 

Reimbursement Of Certain Vehicles And/Or Equipment  
 
MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4499 was by Mr. Henley and second 

was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes indicated that this Resolution was discussed at length with the 
previous Resolution. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else 
present to address the Council concerning this issue, Mr. Ammons closed the public 
hearing and called for the question. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4489 

Resolution Number 4489 – A Resolution Accepting The Final 10% Of The City Of 
Vestavia Hills Budget For Fiscal Year 2012-2013 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4489 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this adopts the final 10% of the City’s current fiscal 
year budget pursuant to Alabama law. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4490 

Resolution Number 4490 – Alcohol License – Five Star Mart LLC D/B/A Dolly 
Creek Shell; 050 Retail Beer And 070 Retail Table Wine (Off Premise); 
Robert Lee Cayse, Jr., Executive  (public hearing)   

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4490 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Downes explained that this business has undergone a change in ownership 
and this Resolution requests a beer/wine license for the new owner. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that his review shows no problems with the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else 
present to address the Council concerning this issue, Mr. Ammons closed the public 
hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 8 
 

 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of 
September 9, 2013 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4491 – A Resolution Authorizing Mr. Ammons And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Renewal Of The Contract 
For Collection Of Garage And Trash For The City Of Vestavia Hills   (public 
hearing)  

• Resolution Number 4492 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase Technology Equipment For The Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest 
With A Portion Of A $300,000 Grant From The Public School And College 
Authority (PSCA) 

• Resolution Number 4493 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Janitorial Services 
For The Civic Center And Authorizing Mr. Ammons And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A 3-Year Agreement For Said Services    (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4494 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A 
Building Or Structure Located At 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel Id# 28-15-4-016-009.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 
Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The 
Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The 
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For The City Of Vestavia Hills To 
Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing The City Attorney And 
The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged Against 
The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4495 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A 
Building Or Structure Located At 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, Parcel Id# 28-30-2-014-001.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-
30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The 
Code Of Alabama, And In Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The 
City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For The City Of Vestavia Hills To 
Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing The City Attorney And 
The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged Against 
The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or 
Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 
Owners   (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4496 – A Resolution Approving And Adopting The General 
Fund Budget, A Special Revenue Fund Budget And A Capital Project Fund 
Budget For The City Of Vestavia Hills For The Period Beginning October 1, 
2013 Until September 30, 2014   (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4497 – A Resolution Approving A Two-Percent (2%) COLA 
For Employees Effective October 1, 2013 



City Council Minutes 
August 26, 2013, 

Page 9 
 

• Resolution Number 4498 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Remit Payment Of The Balance For The Republication Of The City’s Municipal 
Code From The Fiscal Year 2012-2013 General Fund   (public hearing) 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, expressed concern over the City’s commitment 
to keeping sign litter off of City rights-of-way.  He indicated the collection of signs is 
beginning to look bad. 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, stated that he is concerned over the 
water/sewer rates he has to pay.  
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council needed to enter into Executive Session for an 
estimated 20 minutes to discuss the good name and character of an individual.  Mr. 
Boone concurred that was a legal reason to enter into the Session.  Mr. Ammons opened 
the floor for a motion: 
 
MOTION Motion to move into Executive Session for an estimated 20 minutes for 

the discussion of the good name and character of an individual was by Mr. 
Sharp and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

   Motion carried. 
 
 The Council exited the Chamber and entered into Executive Session at 6:00 PM.  
At 6:35 PM, the Council re-entered the Chamber and Mr. Ammons called the meeting 
back to order. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Henley.  Meeting adjourned at 6:35 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4491 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT TO RENEW A CONTRACT FOR 
COLLECTION OF GARBAGE AND TRASH 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with Republic Services of Birmingham to renew the contract for collection of garbage 

and trash; a copy of said First Amendment to Agreement for Renewal of Contract for 

Collection of Garbage and Trash is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4491 and though written fully therein; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4491 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4492 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4492 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE CERTAIN TECHNOLOGY EQUIPMENT FOR THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY IN THE FOREST FROM A PORTION OF 
A GRANT OF $300,000 FROM THE PUBLIC SCHOOL AND COLLEGE 
AUTHORITY (PSCA) 

 
 WHEREAS, in January 2009, the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest was awarded a 

$300,000 grant from the Public School and College Authority (“PSCA”) and notified in October 

of 2012; and 

 WHEREAS, the Library Board has carefully considered the best use for said funds and 

has allocated an amount not to exceed $121,000 of said funds for projects detailed in information 

marked “Exhibit A” and attached and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4492 as though 

written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the described projects and feel 

it is in the best interest to authorize the City Manager to purchase said projects as described in 

the attached exhibit. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase projects as described in the attached 

exhibit for an amount not to exceed $121,000; and 

2. Invoices for said purchases shall be submitted directly to the Alabama Building 

Commission (“ABC”) for payment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the grant; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4492 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 



Resolution Number 4492 
Page 2 

 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4493 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS CIVIC CENTER FOR A PERIOD OF 3 
YEARS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for janitorial services for the 

Vestavia Hills Civic Center; and 

 WHEREAS, bids were received on August 1, 2013 and read aloud publicly with the 

results tabulated and detailed in a memorandum to the City Manager from the Public Services 

Director dated August 16, 2013, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4493; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described memorandum recommends the acceptance of Custom 

Cleaning Solutions bid for a 3-year agreement; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit B,” 

attached and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4493 ; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid and authorize the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver said 3-year 

agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Custom Cleaning Services is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said 

Agreement for cleaning services as described above; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4493 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A







BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICES AT THE VESTAVIA HILLS CIVIC CENTER 
BID 2013-09 

 
SPECIFICATIONS AND AGREEMENT 

 
Sealed bids for janitorial services at the Vestavia Hills Civic Center will be accepted by the Purchasing 

Agent, Finance Department, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, 513 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, 
AL 35216 until 2:00 p.m. CDT, Thursday, August 1, 2013, at which time they will be publicly opened and read 
in the Council Chamber at the same address.  A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at the Civic Center as 
detailed below.   
 
 Bidders can download the complete bid package including specifications and bid form via the internet at 
www.vestaviahills.net (to link under “Public Notices” titled “Civic Center Janitorial Services”); by visiting the 
Finance Office at the address shown in paragraph above; or by calling (205) 978-0152 and requesting a copy be 
mailed.  Any addenda will be available on the internet and mailed to only those vendors who were provided a 
copy of the original invitation in person or by mail.  All bidders are responsible for checking the website for 
addenda until bid opening date.   
 

A mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held Tuesday, July 23, 2013, at 10 a.m. CDT in the VESTAVIA 
HILLS CIVIC CENTER, located at 1973 Merryvale Road, Vestavia Hills, AL  35216.  The bidder declares that 
the bidder fully understands that the City of Vestavia Hills (the “City”) has put forth a good-faith effort of 
estimating the approximate maintenance required.  The bidder acknowledges and agrees that the maintenance 
operations may vary.   

 
The successful bidder will be awarded a 3-year agreement.  Bidder agrees to commence work with an 

adequate force and sufficient equipment to complete the work within the allotted time, at the prices hereinafter 
named.  The terms, provisions, limitations, and conditions set forth in this agreement between the City of 
Vestavia Hills (hereafter, “City”) and the bidder (hereafter, “Contractor”) are incorporated in this Invitation to 
Bid by reference as though set out fully herein.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B Page 1



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 2 of 7 

 
1. Scope of Services 
 

To provide all supervision, labor, equipment, cleaning supplies (except items furnished by the City, as 
listed below*), and services required to perform all janitorial services for the Vestavia Hills Civic Center 
for Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation as specified herein from October 1, 2013 to September 30, 
2016. 
 
*Supplies furnished by the City include the following: 

• Toilet paper 
• Paper towels 
• Handsoap  
• Urinal screens  
• Trash bags 

 
The City will provide suitable storage space for equipment and materials provided by the Contractor.   
 

2. Qualification of Bidders 
 

a) Bidding on this agreement shall be limited to individuals, partnerships, and corporations actively 
engaged in the field of janitorial services.  Bidders shall demonstrate competence, experience, and 
financial capability to carry out the terms of this agreement.  The City of Vestavia Hills, the contracting 
agency, may require proof of these qualifications. 
 

b) All bidders must have in their possession or available to them by formal agreement at the time of 
bidding, vehicles, devices, hand tools, and other equipment necessary to perform the work as outlined in 
these specifications. 

 
c) Contractors must attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting. 

 
d) Contractors must include a copy of their company’s E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding with the 

bid submission. 
 
3.  General Conditions 

In addition to other requirements listed in this bid invitation packet, the Contractor must meet the following 
general conditions: 
a) All documents required by the City must be furnished to the Purchasing Agent within fifteen days after 

the award, with the exception of those documents required as part of the bid submission.  Should the 
successful bidder fail to furnish the required documentation, the City shall make award to the next 
lowest responsible bidder 

b) Upon satisfaction of all requirements and final execution of the agreement, a proceed order shall be 
issued by the City within fifteen days.  Contractor may not begin work before a notice to proceed is 
issued.   

c) Award will be made to the lowest responsible bidder as determined by the Vestavia Hills Public 
Services Department.  The City shall have the right to reject any and all bids submitted on the proposed 
work, to waive technicalities and informalities, and to increase or decrease quantities.  **NOTE:  Price 
adjustments will be made for increases or decreases in quantities/service.** 

 
 
 

Exhibit B Page 2



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 3 of 7 

4. Safety Standards 
 

a) All equipment to be used and all work to be performed must be in full compliance with the most current 
safety requirements for performing this type of work. 
 

b) The contractor shall be solely responsible for pedestrian and vehicular safety and control on the worksite 
and shall provide the necessary warning devices, barricades and ground personnel needed to give safety, 
protection, and warning to persons and vehicular traffic within the area. 

 

5. Discontinuance of Work 
 

Any practice obviously hazardous as determined by the contracting agency shall be immediately 
discontinued by the contractor upon receipt of either written or oral notice to discontinue such practice. 

 

6. Observance of Laws, Ordinances and Regulations 
 

Contractor at all times during the term of this agreement shall observe and abide by all Federal, State, 
and Local laws and regulations which in any way effect the conduct of the work and shall comply with 
all decrees and orders of courts of competent jurisdiction.  Contractor shall comply fully and completely 
with any and all applicable Federal and State statutes, rules, and regulations as they relate to hiring, 
wages and any other applicable conditions of employment.  Contractor shall upon award provide 
documents required by the City of its vendors and businesses operating within the City. 

 

7. Addition or Deletion of Areas 
 

The City reserves the right to change, add or delete areas for janitorial service.  This is conditional upon the 
total amount of funds available.  Unless otherwise authorized by the contracting agency, failure of the 
Contractor to comply with the approved janitorial service schedule shall be sufficient cause to give notice 
that the contractor is in default of the agreement.**NOTE:  Price adjustments will be made for work 
added/deleted.** 

8. Work Schedule 
 

All work to be done after operational hours every night for the months of November through February; 
Sunday night through Thursday night during the months of March through October. The following dates 
are exceptions to the rule (2014 schedule is TBD and will be supplied when available):   
 

VESTAVIA HILLS PARKS & RECREATION 
CIVIC CENTER CLOSINGS 2013 

 
JANUARY 1  TUESDAY  NEW YEAR’S DAY 
JANUARY 21  MONDAY  MARTIN L. KING, JR. DAY 
MARCH 29-31 FRI-SUN  GOOD FRIDAY-EASTER 
MAY 27  MONDAY  MEMORIAL DAY 
JULY 4  THURSDAY  INDEPENDENCE DAY 
SEPTEMBER 2 MONDAY  LABOR DAY 
NOVEMBER 11 MONDAY  VETERANS DAY 
*NOVEMBER 27 WEDNESDAY *CLOSE AT 5PM 
NOV 28-DEC 1 THUR-SUN  THANKSGIVING 
DECEMBER 24-25 TUES-WED  CHRISTMAS 
DECEMBER 31 TUESDAY  NEW YEAR’S EVE 
WE WILL BE CLOSED JANUARY 1 FOR NEW YEAR’S 2014. 

 
9. Licenses and Permits 
 

Exhibit B Page 3



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 4 of 7 

Contractor shall, at his expense, procure all necessary licenses and permits needed to contract.  
Responsible bidders shall include a commercial cleaning service/ janitorial bond in the amount of 
$10,000 with the bid.   

 
10. Subagreements 
 

The contractor will not be allowed to create a subagreement for work under this agreement unless written 
approval is granted by the contracting agency.  The subcontractor, as approved, shall be bound by the 
contractor.  All directions given to the subcontractor in the field shall bind the contractor as if the notice has 
been given directly to the contractor. 

 

11. Execution of the Agreement 
       

The successful bidder shall, upon notification of selection as the successful bidder, enter into agreement 
with the contracting agency and shall simultaneously provide the appropriate bonds, indemnities and 
insurance required hereunder. 

 
This agreement, when executed, shall be deemed to include the entire agreement between the parties.  
The contractor shall not base any claim for modification of the agreement upon any prior presentation or 
promise made by representatives of the contracting agency.  Contractor must include any additional 
requested terms in the bid response; the City reserves the right to reject any portion of those terms.   
 

 
12. Supervision 

 

Any alterations or modifications of the work performed under this agreement shall be made only by 
written agreement between the Contractor and City and shall be made prior to commencement of the 
altered or modified work.  No claims for any extra work or materials shall be allowed unless covered by 
written agreement. 

 
13. Work Crew Supervision 
 

Contractor shall provide qualified supervision of each crew at all times while working under this 
contract.  Each supervisor shall be authorized by the contractor to accept and act upon all directives 
issued by the contracting agency, provided the directives are within the scope of work descried in this 
agreement.  Failure of the supervisor to act on said directives will be sufficient cause to give notice that 
the Contractor is in default of the agreement, unless such directives would create potential injury or 
safety hazard. 

 
14. Payments 

 

Payments will be made on a monthly basis in accordance with the City’s billing and payment policy.   
 
15. Agreement Termination 

 

The City shall have the right at any time to cancel this agreement for any reason or no reason upon seven 
(7) days advance written notice to the Contractor.  In such cases the contractor will be paid for all work 
actually performed the date of termination, but will not be paid for any work not performed or for any 
anticipated profits on work not actually performed by the termination date. 
 

16. Insurance  
 

Exhibit B Page 4



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 5 of 7 

The contractor agrees to obtain and maintain in force during the terms of this agreement insurance of the 
type, with the coverage and in the amounts specified below: 
 

a) For personal injuries, including death, in an amount of not less than: 
i) $500,000 for any one person occurrence 
ii) $1,000,000 for any one occurrence 

b) For damage to property not belonging to the contractor or his subcontractors in an amount not less than: 
i) $500,000 for any one accident 
ii) $1,000,000 aggregate amount 

 

c) For personal injuries including death and/or for damages to property not belonging to the contractor or 
his subcontractors caused by automotive equipment or used by the contractor or his subcontractors in an 
amount not less than: 
i) $500,000 personal injury per person per occurrence 
ii) $1,000,000 personal injury per occurrence 
iii) $500,000 property damage per accident 

 

d) Workmen’s Compensation, State and Federal Statutory requirements plus: 
i) $500,000 employer’s liability per person 

Such insurance shall be placed with an insurer acceptable to the contracting agency and the 
policies shall provide notice by the insurer to the contracting agency of cancellation, non-renewal 
or material change in any such policy and shall contain an endorsement naming the City of 
Vestavia Hills as an additional insured there under. 

 
17. Crew Information 

a) Crews will be dressed neatly.  Shirts shall be worn at all times. 
b) Courtesy to persons utilizing City facilities is required at all times. 
c) Breaks will be taken individually. 
d) No “horseplay” will be tolerated on the job. 
e) All refuse from lunches and breaks will be disposed of immediately. 

 
18.  Independent Contractor 

Contractor is an independent contractor for purposes of this Agreement.  Nothing contained in the 
Agreement shall be construed to mean that said Contractor is the servant, agent, or employee of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 

19. Indemnity 
Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, its Mayor, City 
Manager, individuals members of the City Council, servants, agents, employees, or representatives from any 
and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, causes of action, liabilities of action, lawsuits, liabilities and 
damages arising out of or resulting from property damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged 
to have been suffered by any person as a result for work performed by the Contractor under this Agreement. 
 

20. Bid 
The Bid submitted by Contractor is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference as though set out fully herein.   
 

21. Severability 
In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
 

I.  CLEANING SUPPLIES REQUIREMENTS 
 

Exhibit B Page 5



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 6 of 7 

• Floor finish will be non-staining and shall provide a high degree of slip protection.  Neutral type cleaning 
shall not be harmful to the surfaces to which they are applied.  Dust mop treatment materials which leave an 
oily residue shall not be used.   

 

• Upon request, Contractor shall submit a list of materials to be used in providing the cleaning service.  The 
building superintendent may approve or disapprove any product.   

 
 
 

II.  OFFICE AREAS / LOBBIES / HALLWAYS  
 

• Wastepaper containers and other waste receptacles will be emptied and returned to original locations.  All 
waste will be collected and removed to a central waste disposal area.  Plastic liners will be taken from the 
customer’s stock.  This is to be done nightly. 

 

• Desk, chairs, and cabinets will be thoroughly dusted on all horizontal surfaces using treated dusting tools.  
Bottle and cup rings and/or other spills are to be cleaned as needed.  Desks that are laden with papers will not 
be cleaned so that work in progress is not disturbed.  Chairs will be dusted on all horizontal surfaces.  All 
chairs are to be replaced in original positions to maintain an overall neat and orderly appearance.  This is to be 
done nightly. 

 

• The following open surfaces will be dusted using a treated dusting tool or a damp cloth when needed:  
miscellaneous cabinets, window sills, coat racks, ledges and shelves under six feet high. NOTE:  Due to the 
fragile nature of computer equipment, telephones, and other desktop accouterments, these items are not to be 
cleaned unless otherwise stated in this agreement.  Handling of personal effects, such as pictures, vases, and 
other personal decorations, will be held to a minimum. 

 

• Carpets will be vacuumed in traffic lanes. All carpeted floor areas are to be thoroughly vacuumed weekly. 
 

• Wall surfaces around light switches and doorknobs are to be spot cleaned as needed. 
 

• All tile floor areas are to be dust mopped with chemically treated dust mops. Spills and stains are to be spot 
mopped on a daily basis. All tile floor areas are to be mopped thoroughly weekly.  
 

• Interior office glass panels and doors are to be spot cleaned to remove fingerprints and smudges nightly. 
 

• Recyclables should not be disposed with trash. 
 

III. RESTROOMS /  LOCKER ROOMS 
 

• Refill paper towel, toilet paper, and hand soap dispensers nightly. 
 

• Mop floors with a disinfecting solution nightly. 
 

• Clean all restroom fixtures including toilets, sinks, urinals and showers nightly. 
 

• Clean partitions on both sides weekly. 
 

• Dust and clean all return air vents under 10 feet high as needed. 
 

• Clean all counter tops and mirrors nightly. 
 
 

 

IV.          AEROBICS / BASKETBALL GYM  
  

• Wooden floors will be swept nightly spills will be damp mopped.    
 

• Mirrors will be cleaned as needed. 
 

• Every Monday, use our Streak Free gym floor cleaner system on the entire gym floor. 
 

V.         KITCHENS AND BREAKROOMS 
  

Exhibit B Page 6



BID 2013‐09  Civic Center Janitorial Services                                                                                                                 Page 7 of 7 

• COUNTERTOPS:  All countertops will be wiped with an approved cleaner to remove spots and stains 
nightly. 

 

• APPLIANCES:  The exterior of all appliances such as refrigerators and microwaves will be wiped clean to 
remove smudges or food particles nightly.  

 

• SINKS:  The sink will be thoroughly cleaned if left free of dishes and cups nightly. 
 

• FLOORS:  The floors will be vacuumed or swept and mopped nightly. 
 

• WALLS:  The walls will be spot cleaned with particular attention given to the area around the trashcan 
nightly. 

 

• TABLES AND CHAIRS:  Tables and chairs will be wiped with an approved cleaner and replaced in their 
original positions to maintain an overall neat and orderly appearance nightly. 

VI.       MISCELLANEOUS 
 

• VCT floors will be buffed monthly. 
 

• Ceramic floors in restrooms will be scrubbed monthly. 
 

VII.      OTHER SERVICES 
• Doors will be locked upon entering the area and checked upon completion of duties. 

 

• Any building maintenance or repair problems that the Contractor’s workers note will be reported on a daily 
basis to the City’s designated representative. 

 

• Workers’ closets will be neat and orderly reflecting a professional approach to business. 
 

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the parties hereto as of the date 
first above written. 
 

Contractor Name 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
     Authorized Signature 
 
 
   _________________________________ 
   Print Name 
 
Its: __________________________________ 
      Title 

         City of Vestavia Hills 
 
 
By:  ______________________________  
        Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 

 
 

Exhibit B Page 7



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4494 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 3128 AUTUMN 
COURT, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 28-15-4-
016-009.000, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 
THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, 
INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS TO CAUSE SAID 
DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE 
COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST 
THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
I.D. Number 28-15-4-016-009.000 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to the 
life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on July 16, 2013, a copy of 
same was sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 2 

 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. and 
after due deliberation the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that 
the structure standing at 3128 Autumn Court, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Parcel ID# 28-
15-4-016-009.000 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and demolished in 
compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-
53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject; 
 
 Section 2. That the City of Vestavia Hills shall cause said demolition to be 
performed by its own employees and/or by contractor(s); and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4494 
Page 3 

 
 ADOPTED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 9th day 
of September, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013, and the 
same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 























Resolution Number 4495 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4495 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 1939 OLD CREEK 
TRAIL, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 28-30-2-014-
001.000, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 
11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, 
OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS TO CAUSE SAID DEMOLITION TO BE 
PERFORMED AND DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY AND 
THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE COST OF SUCH 
DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST THE LAND ON 
WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE EXISTS AS A 
MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE RECOVERED 
IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel 
I.D. Number 28-30-2-014-001.000 is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to the 
life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on July 16, 2013, a copy of 
same was sent via certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 



Resolution Number 4495 
Page 2 

 
 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. and 
after due deliberation the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds that 
the structure standing at 1939 Old Creek Trail, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Parcel ID# 28-
30-2-014-001.000 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and demolished in 
compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-53B-1 through 11-
53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance Number 2382 of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
 
 Section 2. That the City of Vestavia Hills shall cause said demolition to be 
performed by its own employees and/or by contractor(s); and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ADOPTED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 
 



Resolution Number 4495 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 9th day 
of September, 2013 while in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2013, and the 
same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

























Resolution Number 4496 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4496 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 

THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET, A SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUND BUDGET AND A CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUND BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2013 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2014. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared and presented a “general fund 

budget” which has been reviewed and amended by the City Council for said period 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $33,046,147 including transfers out, 

to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2013, through September 30, 2014; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “special fund budget” for said 

period reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $2,434,495 including transfers 

from the General Fund, to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2013, through 

September 30, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “capital projects fund budget” for 

said period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $933,417 to be effective for the 

period beginning October 1, 2013, through September 30, 2014. 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-57, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

 Annual appropriation of funds for expenditures of all 
departments and interest on indebtedness:  In all cities, the 
Council shall appropriate the sums necessary for the 
expenditures of the several City departments and for the 
interest on its bonded and other indebtedness, not 
exceeding in the aggregate within ten (10) percent of its 
estimated expenses, and such City Council shall not 
appropriate in the aggregate an amount in excess of its 
annual legally authorized revenue.  But, nothing in this 
section shall prevent such cities from anticipating their 
revenues for the year for which such appropriation was 
made, or from contracting for temporary loans as provided 
in the applicable provision of this title, or from bonding or 



Resolution Number 4496 
Page 2 

 
refunding their outstanding indebtedness or from 
appropriating anticipated revenue at any time for the 
current expenses of the City and interest on the bonded and 
other indebtedness of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$29,741,532, of the municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for 

fiscal year 2013-2014 upon the terms conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$2,191,046, of the municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills 

for fiscal year 2013-2014 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$840,075, of the “capital project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2013-2014 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

   1.  The municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $29,741,532, which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$33,046,147 multiplied by 90% equals 
$29,741,532; and 

 
   2.  The municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City 

Council is hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $2,191,046 

which said amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated 

expenses: 



Resolution Number 4496 
Page 3 

 
$2,434,495 multiplied by 90% equals 

$2,191,046; and 
 

   3.  The “capital projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $840,075 which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$933,417 multiplied by 90% equals 
$840,075; and 

 

   3.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend the sum of 

$29,741,532 from the General Fund, $2,191,046 from the Special Revenue Fund and 

$840,075 from the Capital Projects Fund for municipal expenses for the period beginning 

October 1, 2013, and ending September 30, 2014. 

   4.  A copy of the budgets is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit “A” 

and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out fully herein. 

5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4497 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4497 
 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AN INCREASE 
IN SALARY AND WAGES FOR EMPLOYEES 

 
 THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA ON SEPTEMBER 

9, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared portions of the above-referenced 

budgets for the said fiscal year 2013-2014 for a two percent (2%) increase of wages and 

salaries for all employees; and 

 WHEREAS, the Council, at its regularly scheduled meeting of September 9, 

2013, voted to accept the recommendation of the City Manager to approve a two percent 

(2%) increase in wages and salaries for all employees. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Council hereby approves a two percent (2%) increase in wages and 

salaries for all employees; and 

2. Said increase is effective beginning October 1, 2013. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4498 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REMIT 
THE BALANCE OF REPUBLICATION OF THE CITY’S MUNICIPAL 
CODE FROM THE 2012-2013 FISCAL YEAR GENERAL FUND 

 
 WHEREAS,  on May 29, 2013, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4454 to authorize the republication of the City’s 

Municipal Code with MUNICODE; and 

 WHEREAS, the payment terms approved in Resolution Number 4454 allowed a $9,000 

down payment from the current year and payment of the remaining balance in the budget for the 

2013-2014 fiscal year; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that the balance of the republication of 

the Municipal Code be paid from the fiscal year 2012-2013 funds in an amount not to exceed 

$6,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

City Manager’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to remit the balance of the republication of the 

City’s Municipal Code in an amount not to exceed $6,500 with funding from the current 

fiscal year; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4498 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4500 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR SONU ENTERPRISES, INC., D/B/A CAHABA 
HEIGHTS TEXACO; FARIDA ALI, EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Sonu Enterprises, Inc., d/b/a Cahaba Heights Texaco, located at 

3101 Cahaba Heights Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the off-premise sale of 050- 

Retail Beer and 070-Retail Wine; Farida Ali, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 













RESOLUTION NUMBER 4501 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 
STORAGE AREA NETWORK (SAN) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for computer equipment storage area 

network (SAN) for the Vestavia Hills IT Department; and 

 WHEREAS, bids were received on August 27, 2013 and read aloud publicly with the 

results tabulated and detailed in a memorandum to the City Manager from the IT Director dated 

August 28, 2013, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4501; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described memorandum recommends the acceptance of the bid 

submitted by MicroPulse Technologies in an amount not to exceed $29,582.21; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by MicroPulse Technologies is hereby accepted; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4501 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VESTAVIA HILLS INFORMATION SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT 
513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 
(205) 978-0215 

 
 

DARRIN ESTES 
NETWORK SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager    
 
FROM:  Darrin Estes 
  
DATE:  August 28, 2013 
  
RE:  Computer Equipment Storage area network (SAN) 
 
Two bids were received and opened 8/27/2013at 10am for the Storage area network (SAN). Both bids 
meet all of the required hardware specifications. CDW Government LLC bid $126,862.00. MicroPulse 
Technologies bid $29,582.21. MicroPulse Technologies bid is less than what was budgeted for this 
equipment in account 20-49-8600 -000-712. 
 
I recommend that the bid from MicroPulse Technologies $29,582.21 be accepted.   
 
 



BID SUMMARY 
 

BID-2013-12 

 

BID:   iSCSI SAN ARRAY 

 

BID OPENED:  AUGUST 27, 2013 

   10:00 A.M. 

 

PEOPLE PRESENT FOR BID OPENING 

1. Darrin Estes, IT Director 

2. Melissa Hipp, Accounting Assistant II 

 

BIDDERS: 

 

 1. MicroPulse Technologies $  29,582.21 

 2. CDW Government, LLC $126,862.00 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4502 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ESO 
SOLUTIONS FOR PATIENT CARE REPORTING SOFTWARE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Fire Chief, in a memorandum to the City Manager dated September 9, 

2013, recommended the purchase of patient care reporting software for the Vestavia Hills Fire 

Department from ESO Solutions; and 

 WHEREAS, the cost of the software was reflected in the City’s current fiscal year’s 

budget but requires the execution and delivery of an agreement to complete the purchase; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to authorize 

the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver the agreement for purchase of said software; 

and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4502 as if written fully therein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the attached 

agreement for purchase of detailed software from ESO Solutions; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4502 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



Resolution 4502; Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4503 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REPAIR A 
DAMAGED CHEVROLET TAHOE FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, on August 14, 2013 a City Police Vehicle (Chevrolet Tahoe VIN 

1GNLC2E00CR191337) was involved in a collision; and 

 WHEREAS, Professional Estimating Service, Inc., listed the estimate to repair at 

$21,180.12 and the City’s insurance company, One Beacon, deemed the vehicle a total loss 

determined by the estimated cost of repairs as detailed by Professional Estimating, the estimated 

salvage value and the City’s deductible; and 

 WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has received local offers to repair said vehicle at a cost 

estimated at $17,000 and has recommended that the vehicle be repaired; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the estimates given by the insurance 

company as well as the local estimate to repair and has also recommended repair of the vehicle 

pursuant to the estimate submitted by Anthony Paint and Body Shop, LLC, a copy of which is 

marked as “Exhibit A”, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4593 as though 

written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to repair 

said vehicle. 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to repair the above-

described vehicle pursuant to local estimates given by Anthony Paint and Body Shop, 

LLC; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4503 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 



 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Wood, Melissa A. <MWood@OneBeacon.com>
Sent: Monday, August 26, 2013 4:02 AM
To: Melissa Hipp
Subject: 0AB050253  2012 Chevy Tahoe VIN: 1GNLC2E00CR191337 
Attachments: VVS.pdf; Appraisal.pdf; Salvage.pdf

Good Morning Melissa,  
  
Your vehicle has been deemed a total loss. I have attached the following:  

-          Salvage Quote 
-          Appraisal 
-          VVS - market evaluation report 
  
Please review these documents for accuracy. Here are the figures based on your decision about the salvage.   

  
ONEBEACON RETAINS   CITY RETAINS    
VVS 31,251   VVS 31,251   
Deductible -25,000   Salvage -13,768.76   
      Deductible -25,000.00   
TOTAL 6,251   TOTAL -7,518 Under Deductible 
  
  

  
 If the vehicle is not at your own facility, we will pay storages charges through 
Wednesday, August 28 2013.  
  
If there is lien holder on this vehicle, we would need to contact them and obtain a buy out figure and that amount 
would be deducted from the settlement. Please scan or fax a copy of your title as soon as possible, so we can 
confirm this information.  
  
 Upon review and agreement with these figures, I will discuss the process and necessary required documents for 
either option you choose.  
  
 Please call or email with any questions. I look forward to hearing from you.  
  
  
Police equipment: If equipment is not damaged we would pay for the transfer cost to the new vehicle, however  whatever 
is taken would be adjusted out of the options if  the VVS was valued with them (this may not make a big 
difference in the vehicle figure )  
  
  
Melissa Wood  
Mwood@onebeacon.com 
OneBeacon Insurance Group  
188 Inverness Drive West Suite 600  
Englewood, CO 80112 
Phone: 1-800-321-2721 x3868 
Fax : 800-590-3666   



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4504 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4504 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION FOR A FLOOD 
HAZARD MITIGATION ASSISTANCE GRANT FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF AT-RISK FLOOD PLAIN PROPERTIES WITHIN 
THE MEADOWLAWN ESTATES SUBDIVISION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Mitigation 

Assistance (FMA) grant program has been established to assist local governments with taking 

critical mitigation measures to protect life and property from future flood damage to properties 

insured under the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP); and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, (City) acting by and through its Mayor 

and City Council proposes to apply for FMA grant funds to for the acquisition of select eligible 

properties located within the 100-year flood plain; and  

 WHEREAS, the City, as a recipient of these funds as the subgrantee, is required to provide 

and make available funds for the local non-federal share for the above-stated mitigation activities. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor, and Jeffrey Downes, City Manager, are hereby 

authorized to execute and submit an application with appropriate assurances to the State 

of Alabama Emergency Management Agency and the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency, requesting FMA grant funds for the acquisition of select eligible properties that 

are at high risk of flood damage; and 

2. That the City hereby obligates itself to meet the required local match in cash and in-kind 

services in order to complete the proposed Meadowlawn Estates Flood Plain Acquisition 

Project; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4504 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4504 
Page 2 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4506 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO AN AGREEMET WITH LEHE PLANNING, LLC FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO ASSIST IN THE FILING OF AN 
APPLICATION FOR A FLOOD MITIGATION GRANT AND TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING FOR CERTAIN ADDITIONAL NEEDED SURVEYS 
FOR SAID APPLICATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution Number 4504 to make 

application for Phase I of a mitigation planning effort for the Meadowlawn Community; and 

 WHEREAS, LEHE Planning Inc., (“Consultant) has submitted an agreement to provide 

professional services to assist with submission of an application for a flood mitigation grant in an 

amount not to exceed $7,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has reviewed said agreement and has provided for an 

addendum to the agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has indicated additional surveys needed to complete said 

application in an amount not to exceed $2,000 as specified by the City Engineer; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendations of the City Manager as described above. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver that 

certain Agreement for Professional Services by and between the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama (“City”) and LEHE Planning, LLC (“Consultant”) as amended by the 

Addendum.  Copies of the Agreement for Professional Services and the Addendum to 

the Agreement for Professional Services are attached hereto, marked as Exhibits A & 

B, respectively, and are incorporated into this Resolution Number 4506 as though set 

out fully herein; and 

2. The City Manager is also authorized to expend an amount not to exceed $2,000 for 

additional surveys needed in order to complete said application; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4506 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

 
 
 



ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk  
 



 Agreement for Professional Services, page 1 of 4 

STATE OF ALABAMA  ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY  ) 

 

 

 

Agreement for Professional Services  
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made this ____ day of _____________, 2013, by and 

between the CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ("City"), located at 513 Montgomery 

Highway, Vestavia Hills, AL 35216, and LEHE PLANNING, LLC, ("Consultant"), 

located at 300 Century Park South, Suite 216, Birmingham, AL 35226. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has experienced repetitive flooding which poses a threat to 

as many as 31 homes in the Meadowlawn Estates subdivision (“Meadowlawn”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City supports mitigation measures to reduce the threats of 

flooding including mitigation measures which seek to voluntarily acquire properties 

located in flood hazard areas; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Consultant’s economic feasibility study, completed as Phase I of 

the City’s mitigation planning efforts for Meadowlawn, has determined in its that the 

acquisition of high risk flood  areas of (the “Acquisition Project’) is eligible for funding 

under Flood Mitigation Assistance (“FMA”) grant programs administered by FEMA; and  

 

WHEREAS, FEMA has announced that $121 million is now available for 

funding of eligible projects under the FMA grant program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Consultant is capable of providing professional planning 

services required for developing the project for submission for funding under the FMA 

grant program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is in need of the services provided by the Consultant; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Consultant desire to enter into this Agreement 

under which the Consultant shall provide such services for the City as are set forth herein. 

  

 NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:   

 

1.  DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES.  The Consultant will perform the following 

tasks, under the direction of the City Engineer for the City:  

 

1. Refine project cost estimates and update the Benefit Cost Analysis by completing 

the following tasks: 

Exhibit A



 Agreement for Professional Services, page 2 of 4 

a. Perform a study to obtain a multiplier of tax values to predict market 

values and substitute the new values in the project cost estimate. 

b. Update the demolition costs and obtain the cost of asbestos removal, if 

required, by the City retaining the services of an asbestos inspection and 

removal company to examine one or more home.  The City will pay for 

this inspection report. 

c. Update all other costs for acquisition (e.g., appraisal fees, attorney fees 

and closing costs, etc.) 

2. Facilitate owner and neighborhood participation. 

a. Reactivate and update project website. 

b. Obtain written willingness to sell from participating property owners, 

using FEMA forms. 

3. Complete an application for FMA grant funding through FEMA’s e-grant portal, 

including complete forms, maps, photos, drawings, and other information 

required for the application.  

4. Respond to FEMA requests for information (RFIs) as the application undergoes 

FEMA review and approval processes. 

 

 2.  USE OF AGENTS OR ASSISTANTS.  To the extent reasonably necessary 

to enable the Consultant to perform the duties under this Agreement, the Consultant is 

authorized to engage the services of any agents or assistants that the Consultant may 

deem proper and further to employ, engage, or retain the services of such other persons, 

businesses, or corporations to aid or assist the Consultant in the proper performance of 

the duties, as approved by the City.  The services of Alex Cotton, SRA, Real Estate 

Appraiser, will be required to complete the tax valuation study.  The provisions of this 

Agreement shall also bind such agents and assistants who perform services for the City 

under this Agreement.   

 

3. TIME FOR PERFORMANCE.  Consultant will complete the application by 

the 9/27/2013 deadline established by the Alabama EMA, unless an extension is 

approved by the Alabama EMA.  Completion of all services shall continue until the City 

has received a written notice of approval or denial of its grant application by the Alabama 

EMA and FEMA.    

 

 4.  PAYMENT AND EXPENSES.  As compensation for the above-described 

services, the City will pay Lehe Planning, LLC, a fixed fee of $7,500, including 

reimbursable expenses, such as travel, printing, and postage, unless a higher amount is 

approved by amendment to this Agreement.   

 

Included in the $7,500 total fee to be paid to the Consultant is a fixed fee of 

$1,500 for the services to be provided by Alex Cotton, SRA, Real Estate Appraiser.  This 

fee is for real estate data services required for establishing a statistically valid ratio of 

market value to tax value.  This study, to be prepared jointly by Lehe Planning and Alex 

Cotten, will be used to predict the purchase amounts of properties for the FMA 

application budget.  

Exhibit A



 Agreement for Professional Services, page 3 of 4 

The total fee will be paid within 30 days following completion of the FMA 

application.  

 

 5.  TERM/TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall terminate automatically 

upon completion by the Consultant of the services required by this Agreement.  Either 

party may terminate this Agreement by giving at least 72 hours notice.  The Consultant 

will be paid for services and expenses incurred up to the termination date.  

 

 6.  RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES.  It is understood by the parties that the 

Consultant is an independent contractor with respect to the City, and not an employee of 

the City.  The City will not provide fringe benefits, including health insurance benefits, 

paid vacation, or any other employee benefit, for the benefit of the Consultant. 

 

 7.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 

the parties and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreement whether 

oral or written.  This Agreement supersedes any prior written or oral agreements between 

the parties. 

 

 8.  AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may be modified or amended if the 

amendment is made in writing and is signed by both parties. 

 

 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be 

valid and enforceable.  If a court finds that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or 

unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become valid and enforceable, 

then such provision shall be deemed to be written, construed, and enforced as so limited. 

 

 10.  WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT.  The failure of either party to 

enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or limitation 

of that party's right to subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with every 

provision of this Agreement. 

 

 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall become effective upon its 

execution. 

 

 12.  APPLICABLE LAW.  The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern this 

Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and 

year first set forth above. 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

BY: _________________________  BY: ________________________ 

 Alberto (Butch) Zaragoza    Jeffrey Downes 

ITS: Mayor      ITS: City Manager 

Exhibit A



 Agreement for Professional Services, page 4 of 4 

 

ATTEST: _____________________________ 

  Rebecca Leavings 

ITS:  City Clerk 

 

 

LEHE PLANNING, LLC 

 

 

BY:  _____________________________ 

  James E. Lehe 

ITS  Manager 

Exhibit A





GREEN VALLEY RD

DOLLY RIDGE RD

PIPE LINE RD

MEADOWLAWN DR

VALLEY PARK DR

LA HAVEN CIR

MEADOW

VIEW CIR
4001

4045
4044

4000
4000

4001
4001

3113
3121

3125
4040

3105
4004

4004
4005

4005
4009

4025
3112

4036
3116

4008
4008

4009
4009

4012
4012

4013
4013

3120
3121

4020
4024

4032
4016

4016
4017

3124
3125

4017
4028

3128
3129

4020
4021

4020
3012

4025
3016

3132
3133

3024
4025

4033
4024

3028
3137

3144
4028

4029
30113013

3021
4032

3141
3029

3025
4044

4033
3017

4037
3145

3021
3149

3020
4041

3030
4048

3130
4045

3114
3008

3136
3016

3128
3020

3118
3110

0
300

150
Feet

ÜWendy Appling
September 4, 2013

Flood Hazard Mitigation
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Flood Zone
AAEBuildings
Stream
75% Funding
90% Funding
100% Funding

Meadowlawn Estates





 
 

James E. Lehe, AICP 
Manager  

 

 

 
 

300 Century Park South ● Suite 216 ● Birmingham, AL 35226 
Phone:  205-978-3633 ● Fax:  205-978-3634 

www.leheplanning.com 

 

      September 3, 2013 
 
 
Christopher Brady, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 

RE: Proposed Professional Services for the Meadowlawn Estates Flood Plain 
Acquisition Project 

 
Dear Christopher: 
 

This proposal responds to your request for my firm to follow up on the feasibility 
phase for obtaining funding under FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) program for 
the acquisition of up to eligible homes within the flood plain of the Meadowlawn Estates 
subdivision.  That first phase concluded that a buyout is feasible and eligible for FEMA 
funding.  Funding may now be available, and we would prepare a complete application 
for the City.   
 
 Lehe Planning, LLC, proposes that the following scope of work be provided to the 
City, under your direction as City Engineer.  Professional services would be provided to 
define the final project scope and complete all information required for the FEMA FMA 
grant application, as described below: 
 

1. Refine project cost estimates and update the Benefit Cost Analysis by completing 
the following tasks: 

a. Perform a study to obtain a multiplier of tax values to predict market 
values and substitute the new values in the project cost estimate. 

b. Update the demolition costs and obtain the cost of asbestos removal, if 
required, by the City retaining the services of an asbestos inspection and 
removal company to examine one or more home.  The City will pay for 
this inspection report. 

c. Update all other costs for acquisition (e.g., appraisal fees, attorney fees 
and closing costs, etc.) 

2. Facilitate owner and neighborhood participation. 
a. Reactivate and update project website. 
b. Obtain written willingness to sell from participating property owners, using 

FEMA forms. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

3. Complete an application for FMA grant funding through FEMA’s e-grant portal, 
including complete forms, maps, photos, drawings, and other information 
required for the application.  

4. Respond to FEMA requests for information (RFIs) as the application undergoes 
FEMA review and approval processes. 

 
As compensation for the above-described services, the City will pay Lehe 

Planning, LLC, a fixed fee of $7,500, including reimbursable expenses, such as travel, 
printing, and postage, unless a higher amount is approved by amendment to this 
Agreement.  Included in the $7,500 is a fixed fee of $1,500 for the services to be 
provided by Alex Cotton, SRA, Real Estate Appraiser.  This fee is for real estate data 
services required for establishing a statistically valid ratio of market value to tax value.  
This study, to be prepared jointly by Lehe Planning and Alex Cotten, will be used to 
predict the purchase amounts of properties for the FMA application budget.  
 

I am hopeful of the City’s final approval of this proposal to take advantage of this 
newly-announced funding opportunity.     
  
      Sincerely, 
 
 
      James E. Lehe, AICP 
      Manager 
 



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 1



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 2



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 3



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 4



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 5



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 6



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 7



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 8



Exhibit B 
Addendum Page 9



Resolution Number 4505 
Page pg. 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4505 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR NON-ATHLETIC GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills invited bids for non-athletic grounds maintenance 

for the Parks and Recreation Department and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest consisting of a 

base bid and eight (8) alternates; and 

 WHEREAS, bids were received on August 27, 2013 and read aloud publicly with the 

results tabulated and detailed in a memorandum to the City Manager from the Public Services 

Director dated September 4, 2013, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4505; and 

 WHEREAS, the above-described memorandum recommends the acceptance of the bids 

and alternates as follows:  (1) award the base bid to Tru Green for an amount not to exceed 

$35,712.38; and (2) eliminate Alternate 3 and award Alternates 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, and 8 to Natural 

Effect totaling $16,890; and 

 WHEREAS, in a memorandum dated September 4, 2013 to the City Manager from the 

Library Director, recommendation was made to award Alternate 7 to Natural Effect in an amount 

not to exceed $10,500; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree it is in the best public interest to accept 

said bid as recommended by each Department Head. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid package submitted by Tru Green is hereby accepted for the base bid only; and 

2. The bid package submitted by Natural Effect is hereby accepted for Alternates 1, 2, 4, 5, 

6, 7 and 8 as described above; and 



Resolution Number 4505 
Page pg. 2 

 
3. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver 

said 3-year agreement to both companies for non-athletic maintenance for a period of 

thirty-six (36) months; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4501 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





































Resolution Number 4507 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4507 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REMIT 
PAYMENT FOR ADDITIONAL SEWER CAPACITY ADJUSTMENTS TO 
ENVIRO SERVICES LLC FOR SEWER SERVICES TO THE LIBERTY 
PARK SPORTS COMPLEX 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills (“City”) constructed and currently operates the 

Liberty Park Sports Park facilities located adjacent to Liberty Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the sports complex opened in 1998 and was provided sewer services by 

Enviro Services, LLC (“Enviro”), a privately owned sewer treatment facility owned and operated 

by the Liberty Park Joint Venture (“LPJV”) pursuant to an agreement for an estimated amount of 

waste water from the park; and 

 WHEREAS, for a period of approximately 14 years, the usage went unchecked until 

LPJV discovered that the allotment originally estimated wasn’t sufficient to cover the actual 

usage; and 

 WHEREAS, in a memorandum dated August 29, 2013, from the Public Services 

Director to the Finance Director, an explanation of an invoice from Enviro which was submitted 

for payment and gave a full explanation of the background of waste water generated from 

operation of the park along with the efforts both by the City and LPJV to determine any possible 

leaks or separate meters that might have skewed the calculated usage; and 

 WHEREAS, all research has shown that the invoice, a copy of which is attached and 

marked as Exhibit B and attached to this Resolution Number 4507, is due and payable in the 

amount of $52,576; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the information and recommended approval 

of said remittance. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to remit payment to Enviro Services LLC 

payment for invoice number AUG-082013 in the amount of $52,576; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4507 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 



Resolution Number 4507 
Page 2 

 
 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A



Exhibit B



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2464 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4 AND 5 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 – AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING 
AND CREATING THE ALCOHOL ABUSE EDUCATION 
PROGRAM AND THE TRAFFIC SAFETY EDUCATION 
PROGRAM FOR THE MUNICIPAL COURT OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2464 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, on December 26, 2012, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2427 to establish and create 

the Alcohol Abuse Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program for the 

Municipal Court of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

amend Sections 4 and 5 of said Ordinance Number 2427 to add a fee for rescheduling and 

to reallocate the distribution of funds derived from said program. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SECTIONS 4 

AND 5 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2427 ARE AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 “4. The Clerk of the Municipal Court shall be responsible for 

scheduling of classes, instructors and facilitators and setting reasonable 

fees for the payment of the instructors and facilitators.  The Clerk of 

Municipal Court shall adopt rules and regulations for the operation of the 

established educational programs, criteria for acceptance and completion 

and established fees for the appropriate program.  These rules and 

regulations, policy and procedures, and fee list shall be readily available 

for public inspection.  If, for any reason, a class needs to be rescheduled or 

cancelled, a penalty of $25.00 shall be charged from fees already 

collected. 



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 2 

 
 
5. All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Alcohol Abuse 

Education Program and the Traffic Safety Education Program in the form 

of registration fees, evaluation fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained 

in a separate account with the City Finance Department to be distributed 

as follows:  

  (a)  to fully cover the cost of services provided by the 

previously mentioned education programs;  

  (b)  an amount equivalent to Forty Dollars and Fifty Cents 

($40.50) per individual participant to the City’s “Court and Correction 

Fund”; and 

  (c)  an amount equivalent to Ten Dollars ($10.00) per applicant 

to the “Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund”; and  

  (d) an amount equivalent to Thirty Seven Dollars ($37.00) per 

applicant along with all rescheduling fees shall be applied to the City’s 

“General Fund”; and 

  (e)  all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of 

providing various other traffic safety education and awareness programs to 

the Vestavia Hills community through the Traffic Safety Office of the 

Vestavia Hills Police Department or any other police activities including 

training of officers.  The collection and use of these monies shall be under 

the supervision of the Police Chief and Finance Director.” 

 Effective Date:  This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, 

adoption, enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

 Severability:  If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of 

September, 2013. 

 



Ordinance Number 2464  
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2464 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of September, 2013 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

DATE: August 23, 2013
TO: Jeff Downes, City Manager
FROM: Rebecca Leavings. City Clerk

RE: Proposed Amendments to Ordinance Number 2427, Traffic Education

On December 26, 2012 the City Council voted to adopt and approve Ordinance 2427 to
establish a traffic education program for the City. The charge for said program would be $150
per applicant and the proceeds would be distributed as follows: (1) the first $10 would be
deposited to the "Municipal Court Judicial Administrative Fund"; (2) an amount equivalent to
$55 would be deposited to the City's "Court and Correct Fund; (3) all remaining monies would
be utilized to defer the expenses/payroll of the program and for the purpose of providing various
other traffic safety education and awareness programs and other Police activities.

The program has been a success since its inception. During the budget review, the Mayor
questioned the amount of the proceeds into each program and it was later determined that some
of the proceeds should have been diverted into the City's general fund but was left out of the
Ordinance. Also, the Police Chief has determined that additional funding from this program
could be better utilized for training of Police personnel. Therefore, both myself and Chief Rary
felt a re-write of the Ordinance was needed.

Attached you will find a proposed re-write of the original ordinance that allocates the
proceeds per applicant as follows: (1) an amount equivalent to $10.00 will go to the "Municipal
Court Judicial Administrative Fund;" (2) an amount equivalent to $40.50 will go to the City's
"Court and Correction Fund;** (3) an amount equivalent to $37.00 will go to the City's General
Fund; and (4) the remaining monies will be used for the purpose of providing various traffic
safety education and awareness programs, other police activities including training of officers.

Also attached you will find an expected income distribution for the next fiscal year based
upon enrollment of the program over the past 3 months. If classes are held as they have the past
3 months, the distribution of the monies is anticipated [in yellow] to be as follows: Judicial
Administrative Fund - $6,240; Court and Corrections - $25,272; General Fund - $23,088; Police
Education - 39,000 (netted to $23,400 following defray of expenses). It should be noted in this
reallocation that the amounts delegated to the first three funds would be the same from court
costs if a ticket is paid. The only new funding generated goes to the Police Education/Training
fund. Also, the defendant gets a $30 break in his ticket cost and no points on his license.

This draft also institutes a penalty for a rescheduling or "no show" of the class.

Please review the attached and advise.

Cc: Alberto C. Zaragoza. Mayor
Dan Rary, Police Chief



T
ra

ffic
S

c
h

o
o

l
A

tte
n

d
a
n

c
e

A
b

s
e
n

t

1
7

-M
ay

-1
3

2
6

i
o

2
3

-M
ay

-1
3

26
|

4
4

-J
u

n
-1

3
2

4
i

i
1

2
0

-J
u

n
-1

3
2

7

!
5

1
6

-Ju
l-1

3
2

7

0
2

5
-Ju

l-1
3

2
6

T
o

ta
l

E
n

ro
llm

e
n

t
1

5
6

T
o

ta
l

R
e
v

e
n

u
e

$
2

3
,4

0
0

.0
0

A
verage

E
n

ro
llm

en
t

5
2

A
verage

M
o

n
th

ly
$

7
,8

0
0

.0
0

E
s
tim

a
te

d
A

n
n

u
a
l

T
o

ta
l

re
v

e
n

u
e
s

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

T
r
a

ffic
S

c
h

o
o

l
P

a
id

T
ic

k
e
t

Ju
d

ic
ia

l
A

d
m

in
F

u
n

d
$

6
,2

4
0

.0
0

$
6

,2
4

0
.0

0
Ju

d
ic

ia
l

A
d

m
in

F
u

n
d

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

$
3

4
,3

2
0

.0
0

$
2

5
,2

7
2

.0
0

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

P
o

lic
e

E
d

u
c
a
tio

n
$

5
3

,0
4

0
.0

0
$

2
3

,0
8

8
.0

0
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

P
o

lic
e

N
e
t

$
3

7
,4

4
0

.0
0

-$
1

5
,6

0
0

.0
0

P
o

lic
e

E
d

u
c
a
tio

n

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
5

4
,6

0
0

.0
0

R
e
a

llo
c
a

te
:

A
n

n
u

a
l

as
P

ro
p

o
sed

P
ro

p
o

sed
C

u
r
r
e
n

t

Ju
d

ic
ia

l
A

d
m

in
F

u
n

d
$

6
,2

4
0

.0
0

$
1

0
.0

0
$

1
0

.0
0

C
o

u
rt

a
n

d
C

o
rre

c
tio

n
s

$
2

5
,2

7
2

.0
0

$
4

0
.5

0
$

5
5

.0
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
$

2
3

,0
8

8
.0

0
$

3
7

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

P
olice

E
ducation/T

raining
$

3
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

6
2

.5
0

$
8

5
.0

0

P
olice

N
et/E

x
p

en
ses

$
2

3
,4

0
0

.0
0

$
1

3
0

0
p

er
m

o
n

th
$

1
3

0
0

p
er

m
o

n
th

$
9

3
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
1

5
0

.0
0

$
1

5
0

.0
0



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2465 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AND CREATING THE 
COLLISION AVOIDANCE TRAINING PROGRAM FOR CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2465 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 23rd day of September, 2013. 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills recognizes that automobile crashes are the 

leading cause of unintentional injury in Alabama and that automobile crashes continue to 

be the leading cause of death and injury to teens in our country/ and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills recognizes the depth of this problem and 

the impact it has on the quality of life for our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a preventative advanced car control training 

and defensive driving course geared for new or teen drivers is a proactive step in 

reducing said impact; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, more specifically, the Vestavia Hills 

Police Department and the National Traffic Safety Academy, Inc. has a Grant of Lease 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grant of Lease Agreement affords the Vestavia Hills Police 

Department a nontransferable, nonexclusive right, privilege and authorization to teach the 

NTSA Collision Avoidance Training Program (the NTSA CAT Program); and 

WHEREAS, the City, more specifically the Vestavia Hills Police Department, 

wishes to create and establish Collision Avoidance Training and defensive driving school 

for teen drivers as described; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

establish a Collision Avoidance Training and defensive driving school as described in the 

sections above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 2 

 
 

1. There is hereby established a Collision Avoidance Training and defensive 

driving program for teen drivers to be known as “CAT”, which shall be 

under the supervision of the Chief of Police or his/her designee.  Each 

person attending the course shall be charged no more than one hundred 

and twenty five dollars ($125.00) for evaluation, registration, supplies and 

instructor(s) fees.   

2. The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall be responsible for scheduling 

of classes, instructors and facilitators. The Chief of Police or his/her 

designee shall adopt rules and regulations for the operation of the 

established educational program, criteria for acceptance and completion 

and established fees for the appropriate program.  These rules and 

regulations, policy and procedures, and fee list shall be readily available 

for public inspection. 

3. All monies collected as a result of the operation of the Collision 

Avoidance Training Program in the form of registration fees, evaluation 

fees and/or tuition fees shall be maintained in a separate account with the 

City Finance Department to be distributed as follows: 

a. to fully cover the cost of services provided by the previously 

mentioned education programs; and 

b. all remaining monies to be used for the purpose of providing various 

other traffic safety education and awareness programs to the Vestavia 

Hills community through the Traffic Safety Office of the Vestavia 

Hills Police Department or any other police activities.  The collection 

and use of these monies shall be under the supervision of the Police 

Chief and Finance Director. 

4. This ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code 

of Alabama, 1975. 

5. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 



Ordinance Number 2465 
Page 3 

 
 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance which 

shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of 

September, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 
I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2465 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 
on the 23rd day of September, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of 
______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Danny Rary
Sent: Wednesday, September 04, 2013 2:27 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: CAT ord

Pat Boone approved the CAT ord and said it was logical  to do it the same as the ticket classes.   
 

 
Danny P. Rary 
Chief of Police 
Vestavia Hills Police Department 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
205‐978‐0109 Office 
205‐978‐01232 FAX 
drary@ci.vestaviahills.al.us 
 

 
 


	2013_0912CC_A
	2013_0826CC_M
	Resolution 4491
	Resolution 4492
	Resolution 4493
	Resolution 4494
	Resolution 4495
	Resolution 4496
	Resolution 4497
	Resolution 4498
	Resolution 4500
	Resolution 4501
	Resolution 4502
	Resolution 4503
	Resolution 4504
	Resolution 4506
	Resolution 4505
	Resolution 4507
	Ordinance 2464
	Ordinance 2465



